
CC Minutes 10-20-15 

 1 

   City of Washington Terrace 2 

_________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 4 

Held on October 20, 2015 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 

County of Weber, State of  7 
 8 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  9 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 10 

Council Member Mary Johnston   11 

Council Member Blair Brown  12 

Council Member Robert Jensen 13 

Council Member Scott Monsen- excused 14 

Council Member Shupe 15 

Fire Chief Kasey Bush 16 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 17 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 18 

City Manager Tom Hanson 19 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  20 

Lt. Jason Talbot, Weber County Sheriff’s Office 21 

 22 

Others Present 23 
Charles and Reba Allen, Ulis Gardiner, Scott Barker 24 

 25 
1. ROLL CALL     6:00 p.m. 26 

 27 

2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 28 

 29 

3.     WELCOME 30 

 31 

4.     CONSENT ITEMS 32 

 33 

4.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 34 
  35 

       4.2  APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 6, 2015 MEETING MINUTES   36 
Items 4.1 and 4.2 approved by general consent. 37 

 38 

5.     SPECIAL ORDER 39 

        40 

       5.1  PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT ON AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 41 

            15-16 BUDGET 42 
Garrett stated that the budget adjustment will accomplish two things. The first is the approval of rolling 43 

over unexpended funds on one-time projects that were not completed into this years’ budget. 44 

Garrett stated that the other adjustment will involve the water fund. She explained that the water fund is 45 

charging the RDA for their share of commercial meters within the RDA area as well as the RDA share of 46 

the seismic upgrade to the water tank. She stated that the water charge will be around $67,000 and the 47 

meter share will be around $47,000. 48 

Hanson stated that the goal is to have all the meters installed by the end of the fiscal year. 49 



CC Minutes 10-20-15 

Mayor Allen opened the public hearing at 6:05 p.m. 50 
There were no citizen comments. 51 

Mayor Allen closed the public hearing at 6:06 p.m. 52 

 53 

6.    CITIZEN COMMENTS 54 
There were no public comments. 55 

 56 

7.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 57 

       COMMENTS 58 
Due to lack of citizen comments in item 6, item 7 is unnecessary. 59 

 60 

8.    NEW BUSINESS            61 

       8.1  MOTION/RESOLUTION 15-18: AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR  62 

            15-16 BUDGET          63 
 64 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 65 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 66 

To approve Resolution 15-18 to 67 

Amend the Fiscal Year 15-16 budget 68 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 69 

Roll Call Vote 70 
 71 
       8.2   PRESENTATION: FINANCE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT   72 
Garrett highlighted that there is a nice trend in the sales tax and property tax base, noting that there is a 73 

diverse tax base. She stated that building permits are coming in strong for the first quarter, noting that the 74 

City is almost at 100 percent projection. Garrett stated that the first quarter General Fund “revenues over 75 

expenditures graph” shows a cash deficit because the bulk of the taxes come in December with property 76 

taxes. She stated that this illustrates why the overage in the General Fund is so important. 77 

Garrett stated that she is concerned with the City’s billed water usage, noting that consumption is 78 

decreasing. She stated that the fee structure is weighted heavier on overage and may become problematic 79 

when consumption is not coming in as projected. Garrett noted that the audit report and the 80 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report will be presented to Council at the next meeting. 81 

Council Member Brown stated that it is a good thing that water consumption is down, but is hoping that 82 

Council is not headed in the direction of a rate increase to cover costs. Garrett noted that the City relies 83 

on every gallon used to cover fixed costs on the existing system.  84 

Garrett stated that property tax has increased by 6 percent. 85 

Council Member Johnston stated that the City projects water consumption based on history and noted 86 

that staff has done a great job educating the public on water conservation. She stated that historically, the 87 

City has never raised rates because consumption is down and does not believe that there needs to be fear 88 

that the City will raise rates for this reason. Garrett stated it will take her some time to follow up on the 89 

numbers. 90 

 91 

       8.3   PRESENTATION: FIRE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT 92 
Chief Bush presented the report to Council, stating that call numbers are coming in pretty close to what 93 

they have been in previous years. He stated that fire calls are coming in lower. He stated that there were a 94 

few small fires last week that were responded to by the Department. Bush stated that a new truck has 95 

been set up as a brush truck, replacing an older version. Bush stated that the new truck moves more 96 

efficiently. Bush stated that the Department is looking at grants to apply for a new brush truck. 97 

      98 

 8.4  PRESENTATION: RECREATION DEPARTMENT UPDATE 99 



CC Minutes 10-20-15 

Solomon stated that the football season ended this weekend. He stated that he will be conducting a 100 

debrief with the coaches, players, and parents. He stated that football banquets will begin to take place at 101 

the Senior Center. Solomon stated that the new volleyball program began this year and went well. He 102 

noted that basketball practice started last week. Solomon stated that the new recreation signs around the 103 

City seem to be helping direct people to the website for recreation registrations. Solomon stated that the 104 

website is currently being reconstructed.  105 

Council Member Shupe noted that the combined teams of Washington Terrace had the highest percentage 106 

of wins in the entire W.F.F.L. for this season. Mayor Allen stated that the park is very clean after the 107 

games. 108 

Council Member Johnston stated that the volleyball teams were at a disadvantage because they did not 109 

have a location to practice and suggested that the City may have to pay for a location for practice. 110 

Solomon stated that he would research locations. 111 

 112 

  8.5  PRESENTATION: SHERIFF’S OFFICE MONTHLY REPORT  113 
Lt. Talbot stated that call volume reflects a large number of domestic violence calls. He noted that the 114 

community policing case numbers are high due to school year activities. He noted that other high calls 115 

are medical assists.  He noted that the calls for September were at a five year high.   116 

Lt. Talbot explained that the lock down drills in the schools will include a medical aspect this year. He 117 

stated that he will inform staff and Council when a lock out or lock down drill will take place in one of 118 

the schools.  119 

Council Member Brown asked about the suicide hotline and if there are many calls coming in. Talbot 120 

stated that there are many calls coming into the anonymous hotline. He stated that they have received 121 

many tips about guns, suicide threats, and other incidents. Talbot stated that the calls go to a call center 122 

and the school assigned deputy is notified. He stated that all calls are investigated. Talbot stated that the 123 

hotline number is posted in the schools. Council Member Johnston noted that the health teachers also 124 

teach about the program. 125 

Mayor Allen stated that the Community that Cares Program could use a deputy at the quarterly meetings. 126 

Hanson stated that he would like to use the hotline information in the newsletter to educate residents and 127 

parents who may not know about the Program.  128 

   129 

  8.6  MOTION/ORDINANCE 15-05 : APPROVAL OF AMENDED ORDINANCE  130 

       15-05 REGARDING THE ANNEXATION OF PARCEL OWNED BY PLEASANT  131 

       VALLEY RANCH, LLC, RISKY III, LLC, AND ANCHOR LAND & CATTLE, LLC  132 

       TO INCLUDE THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PARCEL 133 
Hanson explained that the amendment is adding the legal description of the parcel to the annexation 134 

ordinance that was approved in July as requested by the county. 135 

 136 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 137 

Seconded by Council Member Brown 138 

To approve amended ordinance 15-05 to 139 

Amend the annexation ordinance 140 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 141 

Roll call vote  142 
 143 

  8.7  DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL TO AWARD THE CONTRACT FOR 144 

       THE WATER TANK SEISMIC UPGRADE PROJECT 145 
Hanson stated that there have been some challenges with the integrity of the dirt surrounding the water 146 

tank. Hanson stated that the desire is to move forward with the bids that the City receives within a 147 



CC Minutes 10-20-15 

specified range. He noted that the next meeting is in mid-November and it will be too late to approve the 148 

bid at that time in order to complete the project this year. 149 

Harris stated that there were some issues with the anchoring piers and some modifications were needed. 150 

He stated that staff is requesting approval from Council to award the contract for the construction of the 151 

system which include anchoring brackets to the tank which assists in strengthening the tank. 152 

Harris stated that the Council approved a contract with Cartwright Engineering in August. Harris stated 153 

that the design package will be completed this Friday and the project will be placed for bid. He stated that 154 

once the bids are opened and the project is awarded, the project can continue. Harris stated that the 155 

timeline is quick. Harris stated that half of the funds need to be expended by the end of the year so that 156 

the City can apply for new CDBG grants. 157 

Harris stated that staff is asking Council to approve an award up to $155,000 noting that the engineer 158 

estimate is around $150,000.  159 

Motion by Council Member Johnston 160 

Seconded by Council Member Shupe 161 

To approve to award the construction contract 162 

 for the Water Tank Seismic Upgrade 163 

Project up to $155,000 164 

Approved unanimously (4-0) 165 

 166 

9.      COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 167 
* Council Member Johnston asked for an update on the striping of the roads. 168 

 169 

 *Mayor Allen invited the Council to a Community the Cares Council meeting to be held this upcoming 170 

Thursday in which the new SHARP survey results will be revealed. Mayor Allen stated that Weber 171 

County is trending down on the scale, but is still the highest in alcohol and drug use. 172 

       173 

10.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 174 
* Hanson stated that he met with Advanced Paving concerning the roads and stated that the reconstruct 175 

on the roads will be completed by next Friday. He noted that crack seal work will still need to be 176 

completed.  177 

* Hanson stated that striping will be awarded to Peck Striping for the amount of $19,528. Harris stated 178 

that the striping will begin next Monday and Tuesday and finished within two weeks. 179 

 180 

11.     UPCOMING EVENTS    181 
          October 29th: Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 182 
          November 3rd: No Council Meeting scheduled due to election. Council Chambers will serve as the polling location 183 
          November 11th: City Offices closed in observance of Veteran’s Day 184 
          November 17th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 185 
          November 21st: City Council Retreat 8:00 a.m. to be held at the Utah Local Governments Trust Offices in North Salt 186 
          Lake 187 
 188 
12.     ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  189 
Mayor Allen adjourned the meeting at 7:14 p.m. 190 
 191 
13.    ADJOURN INTO RDA MEETING (Immediately following the Regular meeting) 192 

 193 

 194 

_______________________________________     ______________________________ 195 

Date Approved                                   City Recorder 196 


